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THE LIER SHROUD: A PROBLEM IN ATTRIBUTION 

 

 

REMI VAN HAELST 

 

 

The Problem 

Many copies of the Turin Shroud carry a date upon them. The earliest of these, dated 1516, is 

rolled in a cylinder kept in the vestry of the St. Gommaire church of Lier,* Belgium (Fig.lb). 

It is rarely displayed. In August 1985, on the occasion of the visit of Rex Morgan, Australian 

writer and Shroud enthusiast, it was privately shown to a small group including myself. The 

last public showing was in April 1986, during the exhibition celebrating the 750th 

Anniversary of Nazareth, a Cistercian convent not far from Lier. All the original documents 

concerning the copy were also exhibited, and I was able to gather new information from 

them. 

 

While the Lier copy is generally attributed to Albrecht Dürer, some authors suggest that it 

could be the work of the Flemish painter Bernard van Orley, from 1518 to 1529 court painter 

to Marguerite of Austria, regent of the Netherlands. 

 

This study presents the information that I was able to gather about the attributions to these 

two artists. 

 

 

Description of the Lier copy 

A Latin text on the copy describes it as "the third part of the [Turin] Shroud"; the dimensions 

are 1.47m x 0.33m. The Turin Shroud measures 4.36m x 1.10m (1.47 x 3 = 4.41; 0.33 x 3 = 

0.99). The fabric was described as "catoen bruijnagtig", brownish cotton, in a notice by 

Richardus van Graezen, whose texts will be examined farther on. The cloth is a one-to-one 

weave, technically a taffeta. 

 

The image on the Lier copy is 0.63m long, and its proportions follow the "golden rule of the 

art of portraiture"; the head, 0.08m, is 1/8 of the total body length. The image is painted in a 

monotone of reddish brown, in tempera; that is, pigment diluted in water mixed with the yolk 

of a fresh egg. Differences in tone are due to repeated applications of the quick-drying paint; 

several layers on high points, such as the nose, the knees, shoulders, etc., therefore appear in 

a darker tone. The wounds are a saturated red, in disharmony with the lightly sketched image. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* While we are accustomed to the French spelling of this Belgian town, Lierre; in this article we will adopt the 
Flemish spelling. Ed. 
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Whereas on the Turin Shroud the smallest wounds and bloodstains can be seen with an 

almost painful accuracy, the Lier copy does not portray many scourge wounds. There are 

more on the dorsal image than on the frontal, but far fewer than we see on the Original. The 

wounds of the many thorns are represented by a simple red line. The distinctive epsilon 

bloodstain on the forehead is absent. 

 

The large bloodstream from the lance wound is painted straight down without any detail. No 

thumbs are shown on the hands. There is a nail wound in what appears to be the palm of each 

hand, though on the Shroud we see a wound only in the left wrist. 

 

The long hair is separated in the back into five small braids. Although the hair on the dorsal 

image of the Shroud is often described as a pigtail or a braid, it is not so visible that a style 

can be definitely ascribed. 

 

The eyes are represented by simple dots, like a child's drawing; the blank spaces around the 

dots make the eyes appear wide open. Indeed, the eyes do appear to be open on the Shroud 

itself; it was only the photographic negative which revealed the eyes to be closed. 

 

It is more than likely that the artist who painted the Lier shroud was copying from a master-

copy rather than directly from the Turin Shroud. Whoever the painter was, he copied what he 

saw on the Shroud, or at least what he saw on a master-copy. He has depicted the lance 

wound on the viewer's right, and put the left hand over the right, as on the Shroud. He also 

put the left foot over the right, although practically all 

medieval crucifixes show the right foot over the left. The 

image is copied as it is seen on the Shroud, but with a 

confusion of positive and negative, particularly in the 

face. On any portrait or icon, the nose, temples, etc., 

would be highlighted; the Lier copyðas all copies of the 

Shroudðmake these areas dark because they are dark on 

the Shroud. However, unlike most copies, on this one the 

body is not outlined but shaded, in sfumata, rather 

accurately. 
                    Fig.2: A burn hole.  Photo by Aurelio 

                    Ghio, 1978. 

 

The four sets of round spots to the right and left of both the frontal and dorsal images are 

shown in red in the belief that they were bloodstains. We know now that they are burn holes. 

After examining the Turin Shroud in 1933, Don Antonio Tonelli reported that these were 

"holes probably made by a hot poker" (Sindon 8:26) while the Shroud was folded, once 

lengthwise, once widthwise. 

 



 

 

9 

 

The scientific exams of 1978 confirmed this observation, adding that the edges of the burns 

are different from the large burns of the 1532 fire in the Sainte-Chapelle of Chambéry. Some 

of the smaller holes were not mended by the Poor Clare nuns in 1534 (Fig.2); others were 

repaired in a way different from the patching over the large burns. 

 

It is interesting that the copy shows the dorsal image on the right, a position which must 

already have been traditional, as it is thus on the XIV
th
 century medallion in the Cluny 

Museum. The fact is manifest on the Lier copy by the orientation of two texts, one in Latin, 

the other in Nuremberger dialect, and the date-1516ðwritten at the top. The Latin text, 

placed between the two heads, reads as follows: 

 

Exanimu Christi pius in qua corpus Jesu 

A cruce depositum inuoluerat ipse Joseph 

Sindonis hoc vere: saltem est pars tercia Sindon 

(Quippe hoc ter maior corpore Jesus erat) 

Huius que mortis lector te instigat acerbe 

Qua pro te misero plasmate sponte tulit. 

 

(This shroud is only one-third [the size] of the Shroud in which the pious Joseph himself 

wrapped the dead body of Christ taken down from the Cross. (In fact the body of Jesus was 

three times larger.) May this shroud, reader, remind you of his bitter death which for you, O 

miserable creature, he freely accepted.) 

 

The text in Nuremberger dialect runs along the bottom of the painting: 

 

Der sun gottes Jhesus Christus vnser erloser jst nach seine pitern tod in ain rain tüch 

gelegt vnd pegrave worde in wölchem er aufs götlicher krafft diser gstalt gleich sein 

mentschliche pildung hat gelassen. Diss hailig tüch wirt alle jar auf nächste tag nach 

InȈerõ crucis zu Camerach in Saphoy gezaigt vnd mit andacht auch wunderzeiche 

wurcke gesechen* [monogram]. 

 

(The Son of God, Jesus Christ our Redeemer, after his bitter death was wrapped and buried in 

a clean cloth on which, through his divine power, he left this picture of his human figure. 

Every year, the day after the holy day of the Invention of the Cross, this holy cloth is 

exhibited in Chambéry in Savoy, where it is beheld with devotion and miraculous signs.) 

 

At the end is what seems to be a monogram (Fig.3) but is as yet unidentified. It could be the 

monogram, not of the artist, but of the 

 

 

 

* The text given in Spectrum 14, p. 31, was copied from another author. We have tried above 

to be more exact. An absolutely literal-translation into English of this archaic text is not 

possible. Ed. 



 

 

10 

 

person who inscribed the text; or even of a person to whom 

the copy belonged. Canon A. Thiéry surmised that it was a 

symbol for et cetera. 

 

On both texts, the calligraphy is especially good; but it seems 

that they were not written by the same hand. 

 

 
 

Fig.3: Monogram. Author's drawing. 

 

The Xabregas Copy 

The Lier copy has often been compared to the copy once kept in the Poor Clare Convent of 

the Mother of God in Xabregas, Portugal, and now preserved in Lisbon (Fig. 1c; also 

Spectrum 13, p. 31). Both paintings could have been made by the same artist or in the same 

workshop; or the smaller one could have been copied from the larger one. 

 

There are many stylistic similarities: on both copies, the eyes are little dots, giving the face a 

somewhat startled expression; on both, the corners of the mouth turn down woefully, as the 

artist mistook the mustache for the mouth. There are no thumbs on the hands of either copy; 

the nail wound on the left hand of the Xabregas figure is through the carpus, but as this hand 

lies over the right wrist, the artist had to put that nail wound near the palm. A close 

comparison will show other similarities. 

 

There are also some very important differences: the Xabregas copy is the same length as the 

Turin Shroud; it is on linen; and it was put in contact with the Turin Shroud (a claim never 

made for the shroud of Lier). Consequently it must have been copied directly from the 

Shroud. 

 

The figure is softly outlined. There are nine or ten strands of hair at the back, instead of five 

as on the Lier copy. Across the loins of the Xabregas figure there is a chain, the artist's 

interpretation of what today is referred to as the "bloody belt"; there is a chain around each 

ankle, front and back, and the crown of thorns is also represented as a chain. 

 

The four "bloodmarks" (poker holes) to right and left of the figure are in an erratic pattern 

whereas those on the Lier copy closely resemble the pattern on the Turin Shroud. 

 

In 1579, the patriarch of Jerusalem, on a visit to the Poor Clare nuns of Xabregas, was 

touched by the similarity of their copy to the Original, by that time in Turin. In his book, 

Historia Serafica (1709), Fernando da Soledad tells this legend: "By order of the Emperor 

Maximilian, two famous painters were to make copies of the 
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Shroud...but afraid that they were incompetent to reproduce the beauty of the image of the 

Redeemer, they did not know how to begin, so went away leaving their canvasses untouched. 

When they returned they found their paintings already done...and it was impossible to 

distinguish the two miraculous copies from the real Shroud." 

 

According to this legend, and considering the similarity of the Lier shroud to the Xabregas 

shroud, it is possible that the Emperor did order two copies of the Original; the full-size copy 

being sent to his cousin, Eleonora,* abbess and founder of the Monastery of the Mother of 

God, and the second, as has been suggested, to his daughter, Marguerite of Austria. The 

difficulty here is that the date for the arrival of the copy to the Monastery was believed to be 

1507, though there are no documents to that effect. If this were so, then nine years passed 

before the Lier copy was dated. However, a chronicle of 1639 in the Monastery archives and 

quoted in part by Don Domenico Leone (El Santo Sudario en España, 1959), follows the 

tradition that the copy was a gift from Maximilian, who had commissioned two painters to 

copy the Turin Shroud. 

 

 

Documents on the Lier Copy 

In the archives of St. Gommaire church is a notice referring to the period when the copy was 

at the Nazareth convent. Numbered KA 132/48, under the heading Reliquien and dated 1651, 

it says: 

 
From the Holy Tomb of Our Lord, one cloth which has always been kept in the greatest honor, and we 

hold by tradition that when the furious soldiers meant to molest the convent, a nun, taking the holy 

gravecloth with her, went to the soldiers asking them what they desired. The soldiers, defeated, told 

her, "We meant to do much evil, but now we cannot do it for we do not know what is the matter with 

us", and they went away. 
 

Another time, the Lord Confessor, taking the gravecloth, went to Lier in the Groote Kercke [the Big 

Church, popular name for St. Gommaire] where there was a person possessed. The Lord Confessor 

touched the gravecloth against the back of the possessed, who instantly started to cry out, "The 

gravecloth of the Lord", making a great clamor like a person tortured. (App. A) 

 

However, an earlier account is found in Gedenckwaerdighe Memorie van 1425 to ende met 

het jaer 1532, compiled by Sir Richardus van Graezen, mayor of Lier (À 1621). Four copies 

of this manuscript exist: the original in Brussels' Royal Library; a XVII
th
 century copy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Leonora de Lancaster (1458-1525), Queen of Portugal, wife of Juan II (1455-1495), King of Portugal. She was 

a cousin of Maximilian, whose mother was Eleanor of Portugal. Ed. 
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Fig.4: Text from Richardus van Graezen, MS 11.757, fol. 43 recto; in Koninklijke Bibliotheek van België, 

Brussels. © Copyright Koninklijke Bibliotheek, All rights reserved. 
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in the State Archives at Antwerp; a short version of the XVIII
th
 century in the Municipal 

Archives of Lier; and two (identical) copies made in the XIX
th
 century. The Lier MS gives 

this version in the section concerning the Nazareth convent: 

 
In this abbey is preserved a valuable jewel, to wit, the third part of the cloth in which Joseph of 

Arimathea wrapped the body of our Redeemer when it was taken down from the Cross. Given by a 

count in the year 1516. It appears to be of brownish cotton (catoen bruijnagtig). 

 

The original text, written before 1532 and preserved in the Royal Library, has never before 

been published. Special permission was granted to reproduce this page (Fig.4) to document 

this article. Mr. Marc Mees, of the Geschiedkundig Genootschap van Lier (Historical Society 

of Lier) transcribed the difficult script. It translates thus: 

 
In this abbey is kept a valuable piece, to wit, the third part of the cloth in which Joseph of Arimathea 

wrapped the body of the Redeemer when it was taken down from the Cross. It is a long cloth but 

narrow and it seems to be of cotton and is somewhat brownish. The second part is kept in Cameryc in 
Saphoyen [Chambéry in Savoy] but it is not told where the third part is kept. In the year 1516 a count 

came to the abbey of Nazareth 

 

who gave this worthy piece as a valuable present. (App. B) The mayor (or his source) did not 

know his Latin well, because he misunderstood the Latin phrase on the Lier painting, "saltem 

est pars tercia Sindon", concluding that "en seyt niet waer het derde bewaert wordt" (and does 

not tell where the third part is kept). 

 

Still another version was published by Thiéry, who seems to be the first author to introduce 

the Lier copy into Shroud literature: Nazareth (near Lier), Cistercian sisters 

 
In this abbey is kept a precious piece, that is, a third of a sheet or shroud in which Joseph of Arimathea 

wrapped the body of Our Savior when he was taken down from the Cross. It is a long cloth but narrow 

and one would say of cotton; it is a bit brownish. The second piece is kept at Chambéry in Savoy but it 
is not known where the third piece could be. In 1516 a count came to Nazareth where he gave this 

precious relic as a special gift. 

 

Postscript: I remember having read thatðI believe during the time of the Beggars,* 1580 to 

1582ðwhen the bands threatened the convent, a nun hid this shroud under her scapular and 

went to meet the enemy, who turned on their heels and left her in peace. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* The "Beggars" were marauding bands-led by Dutch Calvinist noblemen in revolt against Spanish rule. Ed. 
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Thiéry remarks (as pointed out above) that the author mistranslated the Latin inscription, 

which says that the shroud of Lier is the third part of the Chambéry Shroud, not that there are 

three shrouds. 

 

Thiéry gives the passage in Flemish with a French translation in a footnote. But his quotation 

is disconcerting because he claims the passage was "composed by the notary Berckmans, 

around 1700, from XV
th
 century archives now in the Municipal Archives of Lier." 

 

One is immediately suspicious of some error on Thiéry's part, as XV
th
 century archives could 

not have mentioned the shroud of 1516. The Berckmans writingsðin eight large volumes, 

hand-written in old Flemishðare kept in the Lier archives. Mr. Mees tried to locate the above 

passage in the Berckmans books, but without success. All eight volumes were also searched 

by Mr. J. De Keyzer; at the place indicated by Thiéry, there was only an item about the sale 

of a house. During the 750
th
 Anniversary of Nazareth, the Berckmans books were not on 

exhibit; I asked why and was told that there was nothing in them which related to the convent 

or to the Lier copy. 

 

But to conclude the story of the convent: Nazareth did not survive the French Revolution. In 

1797 the abbey and all its goods were confiscated and sold to the public. The shroud-copy, 

somehow, was saved and hidden. After the departure of the French, it was transferred to the 

treasury of St. Gommaire church, where it remains. 

 

 

Marguerite of Austria  

The name of Marguerite of Austria (1480-1530) recurs often in the story of the Lier copy. 

The daughter of Maximilian I of Hapsburg and Mary of Burgundy, in 1497 she was married 

to Don Juan of Aragon, who died six months later. In 1501, the young widow became the 

bride of Philibert the Handsome, Duke of Savoy. As all members of the House of Savoy, 

Philibert was passionately devoted to the Shroud; like the dukes before himðand after himð

he took the relic with him wherever he went in his travels and frequent moves from one ducal 

palace to another; until Marguerite, no less devoted to the precious relic and concerned about 

its preservation, persuaded him that it should be permanently deposited in the Royal Chapel. 

The transfer was accomplished a year after their marriage, and in 1509 the Shroud was folded 

into the silver reliquary, costing 12,000 gold crowns, commanded by Marguerite of the 

Flemish artisan Liévin van Latham. This reliquary was destroyed in the fire of 1532. 

 

In 1503, the archduke Philip the Handsome, grand-master of Flanders and Marguerite's 

brother, returning from a voyage to Spain, passed through Bourg-en-Bresse. The Duke and 

Duchess of  

 



 

 

15 

 

 
Fig.5: Item from the 1523 inventory of Marguerite of Austria; in the Bibliotheque Nationale de France. 

 

Savoy, with great ceremony, carried the Shroud to that city in honor of Philip's visit. 

 

The event is important in that an eye-witness, Antoine de Lalaing, Lord of Montigny, left a 

description of the exhibition which took place that Good Friday, April 14: "[The Shroud] is, I 

believe, the most devotional and contemplative thing on the earth. It is the rich "sydoine" and 

noble Shroud bought by Joseph of Arimathea. One sees it clearly bloody with the most 

precious blood of Jesus our Redeemer.... One sees imprinted all of his most sacred body...." 

He adds that authenticity has been confirmed by its having been tried by fire (hot pokers?), 

boiled in oil, laundered many times, "but it was not possible to efface or remove the imprint 

and image." 

 

In 1504, Marguerite was again left a widow, and a few months later she relinquished custody 

of the Shroud to the dowager-duchess, Claude de Bresse de Bretagne, widow of Duke Philip 

II of Savoy. For three years, Claude de Bresse kept the Shroud with her in her castle in the 

Ain, but in 1106 the relic was returned to the chapel in Chambéry. 

 



 

 


